Public Document Pack

olsover

District Council

-
Scan this QR gode . The ArC
Pl E-0 High Street
S43 43Y
To: Chair & Members of the Planning Contact: Amy Bryan
Committee Telephone: 01246 242529

Email: amy.bryan@bolsover.gov.uk
Monday, 1 March 2021

Dear Councillor

PLANNING COMMITTEE

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Planning Committee of the
Bolsover District Council to be held as a Virtual Meeting on Wednesday, 10th March,
2021 at 11:00 hours.

Please note that there will be a briefing for all Members of the Planning Committee at
10:00 hours. The Planning Committee meeting will start after the briefing at 11:00
hours.

Members will be sent the details on how to access the Virtual Meeting by email.

Virtual Attendance

| have provided all Members with advice that all meetings must be held virtually
during the National Lockdown. The Council Chamber will not be available for
Members to attend the meeting physically during this time. Should you decide to
disregard this advice and potentially be in breach of the law, you will be deemed to
have accepted the risk assessments listed for the Arc.

- We speak your language
@180\761. Polish Méwimy Twoim jezykiem
~_— Slovak Rozpravame Vasim jazykom

Chinese X RIRAIIES

If you require this agenda in large print

or another format please call us on 01246 217753

If you require an adjustment to enable you to participate in or access the meeting
please contact the Governance Team at least 72 hours before the meeting starts.

B disability o
B confident Tel 01246 242424 Emaillenquiries@bolsover.gov.uk Web www.bolsover.gov.uk

EMPLOYER



The Governance and ICT teams supporting the meeting will be working remotely,
and can provide assistance to you joining virtually.

Risk Assessment Disclaimer

When attending this meeting in person, | confirm that | have read and understood the
contents of each of the following risk assessments and agree to act in line with its
content.

e Covid-19 ARC RTW RA001

e Working in Offices At The Arc During Covid-19 Pandemic Guidance — ARC —
SSW001

e Meetings — EM001 - Committee and Council Meetings during the Covid-19

pandemic

Reqister of Members' Interests - Members are reminded that a Member must within
28 days of becoming aware of any changes to their Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
provide written notification to the Authority's Monitoring Officer.

You will find the contents of the agenda itemised from page 3 onwards.

Yours faithfully

g O S\r@@ bﬂg

Solicitor to the Council & Monitoring Officer



PLANNING COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Wednesday, 10th March, 2021 at 11:00 hours taking place as a Virtual Meeting

Item No.

PART 1 - OPEN ITEMS

Apologies For Absence

Urgent Items of Business

To note any urgent items of business which the Chairman has
consented to being considered under the provisions of Section 100(B)
4(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

Declarations of Interest

Members should declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest and Non Statutory Interest as defined by the
Members’ Code of Conduct in respect of:

a) any business on the agenda

b) any urgent additional items to be considered

c) any matters arising out of those items

and if appropriate, withdraw from the meeting at the relevant time.

Minutes

To consider the minutes of the last meeting held on 13" January
2021.

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED UNDER THE TOWN &
COUNTRY PLANNING ACTS

20/00166/FUL - Primrose Residential Development: 16 units (Use
Class C3) - Amberleigh Manor, Primrose Hill, Blackwell

REPORTS OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT
AND PLANNING

Update on Section 106 Agreement Monitoring

Page
No.(s)

33-40



Agenda ltem 4
PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee of the Bolsover District Council
held in the Virtual Meeting on Wednesday, 13 January 2021 at 10:00 hours.

PRESENT:-
Members:-

Councillor Tom Munro in the Chair
Councillors Chris Kane (Vice-Chair), Allan Bailey, Nick Clarke, Jim Clifton,
Paul Cooper, Maxine Dixon, Natalie Hoy, Duncan McGregor, Graham Parkin,
Liz Smyth, Janet Tait, Deborah Watson and Jen Wilson.
Officers:- Sarah Kay (Planning Manager (Development Control)), Chris McKinney
(Principal Planning Officer), Jenny Owen (Legal Executive), Nicola Calver
(Governance Manager), and Amy Bryan (Senior Governance Officer).

PL16-20/21 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Derek Adams and Anne Clarke.

PL17-20/21 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There was no urgent business to be considered at the meeting.

PL18-20/21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable
pecuniary interests and/or other interests, not already on their register of interests, in any
item on the agenda and withdraw from the meeting at the appropriate time.

There were no declarations made at the meeting.

PL19-20/21 MINUTES

Moved by Councillor Nick Clarke and seconded by Councillor Janet Tait
RESOLVED - that the minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held on 4th
November 2020 be approved as a true and correct record.

PL20-20/21 FIVE YEAR HOUSING LAND SUPPLY

Committee considered the report which set out an update on housing land supply and
sought approval for the publication of the Council’s Annual Position Statement on Five
Year Housing Land Supply for 2020.

The report stated that Councils were required to plan to meet their local housing need
through Local Plans and to monitor the delivery of their housing land supply. This

4



PLANNING COMMITTEE

monitoring duty must be published on an annual basis and must outline the supply of
specific deliverable sites sufficient to provide a minimum of five years’ worth of housing
against the requirement set out in their Local Plan. This annual publication was
commonly described as a Council’s Five Year Housing Land Supply.

The Principal Planning Officer highlighted that the 2020 assessment had identified that
the Council could show just over 10 years of deliverable supply for the period 2020/21 to
2024/25. Based on this assessment the Council was able to demonstrate that it had a
Five Year Housing Land Supply as required by the National Planning Policy Framework.

Appendix A to the report set out the Council’s annual position statement of its Five Year
Housing Land Supply. Appendix B to the report set out a full list of major development
sites and their contribution to the Council’s Give Year Housing Land Supply.

Moved by Councillor Graham Parkin and seconded by Councillor Nick Clarke.
RESOLVED - That Planning Committee:

(1) notes the detailed issues set out in the report.

(2) approves the assessment of the Council’'s Annual Position Statement of
Five Year Housing Land Supply as set out at Appendix A.

(3) authorises the publications of the Annual Position Statement of Five Year
Housing Land Supply (Appendix A) and List of Major Development Sites
and their contribution to the Council’s Five Year Housing Land Supply
(Appendix B) on the Council’s website.

(4) grant delegated authority to the Assistant Director of Development in
consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of Planning Committee to make
any minor changes to the text or information referred to in (3) above prior to
publication.

PL21-20/21 ANNUAL INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING STATEMENT AND S106
AGREEMENT MONITORING

Committee considered a report which outlined the requirements of the Community
Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019 in relation to
Annual Infrastructure Funding Statements. The report also sought approval for the
format and content of the Council’s Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement 2019/20 and
to endorse the decision to publish the Statement in December 2020. The report also
updated the Committee on the proposed changes to the Section 106 Agreement
reporting schedule and the proposed internal monitoring arrangements to respond to the
new national monitoring requirements.

The report stated that in order for the Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement to be
properly informative for members of the public a summary report had also been prepared
to provide a more ‘plain English’ way of understanding the key information contained
within the required Statement. The Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement 2019/20
Summary Report was attached to the report at Appendix A. The Summary Report had
been published on 23 December 2020, in consultation with the Chair of the Planning
Committee and the Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Planning. The Committee was

5



PLANNING COMMITTEE
asked to endorse this publication.

The report also stated that as part of the review of the Council’s current informal Section
106 Agreement monitoring regime in readiness for the introduction of new national
monitoring, it was proposed to report updates on Section 106 Agreement monitoring to
the Committee on a quarterly basis.

Moved by Councillor Duncan McGregor and seconded by Councillor Nick Clarke
RESOLVED - that the Committee:

(1) note the requirements of the Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment)
(England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019 in relation to Annual Infrastructure
Funding Statements;

(2) approve the format and content of the Annual Infrastructure Funding
Statement 2019/20 Summary Report and endorse the decision to publish it
in December 2020 to comply with the regulations;

(3) note the proposed changes to the Section 106 Agreement reporting
schedule for Planning Committee and the proposed internal monitoring
arrangements to respond to the new national monitoring requirements.

PL22-20/21 APPEAL DECISIONS: JULY 2020 - DECEMBER 2020

Committee considered the report of the Planning Manager (Development Control) on the
Planning Service’s performance against the Government’s quality of decision making
targets.

During the 6 months since the last monitoring period, the Council had no appeals on
major applications determined and no appeals against enforcement notices. The Council
had had only one appeal on non-major applications determined and this appeal had been
allowed. This equated to only 0.54% of the number of non-major applications determined
within the period. The Council was therefore still exceeding its appeal decision targets.

The Planning Manager (Development Control) gave a presentative outlining details of the
one appeal decision had had been allowed during July to December 2020. The appeal
that had been allowed related to a new pitched roof with decorative roof finial. The
appeal decision had been a judgement about the impact of a proposal on the character
and appearance of the building and the Conservation Area and the setting of Adjacent
Listed Buildings rather than testing a Local Plan Policy.

Moved by Councillor Tom Munro and seconded by Councillor Duncan McGregor
RESOLVED - that the report be noted and that appeal decisions continue to be reported
to Committee every 6 months.

The meeting concluded at 10:55 hours.

6



Agenda Item 5

PARISH Blackwell Parish

APPLICATION Primrose Residential development: 16 units (Use Class C3)

LOCATION Amberleigh Manor Primrose Hill Blackwell Alfreton
APPLICANT Mr S Kelly Amberleigh Manor, Primrose Hill Blackwell DES5 5JF
APPLICATION NO. 20/00166/FUL FILE NO. PP-08647400

CASE OFFICER  Mrs Sarah Kay
DATE RECEIVED 22nd April 2020

SUMMARY
This application has been referred to the Planning Committee because the development is
unable to comply with S106 contribution policies for viability reasons.

Notwithstanding the above, the application is recommended for approval. The proposals are
considered to represent sustainable development and accord in all other respects with policy
requirements. The report presents a balanced planning argument why it is considered that
the benefits of the proposals outweigh non-compliance with infrastructure contribution
policies, inc. consideration of appropriate scales of redevelopment which bring a vacant site
back into use, address on site constraints (protected trees) and maintain neighbouring
amenity.

Site Location Plan

@ il Aberleigh Manor

(Nursing Home)

Blackwell Community Primary,
and Nursery School

Primrose Hill

PRIMROSE HILL

& Crown capyright and database right. Al rights reserved (100010668} 20




SITE & SURROUNDINGS

The site lies within the development envelope of Blackwell and comprises of the foreground
garden area of the former nursing home known locally as Amberleigh Manor, which is located
in the north eastern part of the village.

The group of buildings to the immediate north of the application site are those which comprise
a two storey detached property that were formerly used as the nursing home, but they are all
now vacant.

The application relates to land within the fore grounds of the former nursing home but does
not include the buildings and is approx. 0.54ha in area.

The site has undulating topography across the site. The south west corner sits lower than the
rest of the site which rises towards the nursing home building. Ground levels to the boundary
with residential properties on The Paddock are higher than the gardens of these properties.
There are numerous trees within the site and either side of the access drive some of which
are covered by Tree Preservation Order (BOL/27). Residential properties lie to the west, east
and south. Open countryside lies to the north.

PROPOSAL

This is a full planning application for a development comprising the erection of 16 dwellings
with access taken via the existing tree lined driveway off Primrose Hill running to the east of
The Paddock and opposite Colliery Road in Blackwell.

The development comprises a mixture of 2 bed and 3 bed properties which are detached,
semi-detached and terraced in nature.

B
PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT - AMBERLEIGH MANOR,  ~—-mmax~—
PRIMROSE HILL, ALFRETON. e T T

3 Bedroom Detached - 2 no.
224 sqm

3 Bedroom 2.5 storey - 14 no.
E8 sqm.
Phase 2 - & Adddional
Resid dation
Total no

d care home up to 10
ential units

. Existing trees to remam

. New planting ot Existing level

* Existing planting Proposed level

SITE LAYOUT




The application submission is accompanied by the following plans / documents:
1445-11 — Location Plan

1445-07 Rev F Block / Location Plan

1445-03 — 2 Bed Type (Elevations and Floor Plans)

1445-04 — 3 Bed Type (Elevations and Floor Plans)

1445-08 Rev A Streetscenes

1445-02 Rev P — Site Layout

1445-04 Rev A — Streetscene / Car Ports / Sections

1445-18 - 3 Bed Type — Detached (Elevations and Floor Plans)

Supporting Documents

Design and Access Statement

Planning Statement

Coal Mining Risk Assessment

Land Survey

Tree Survey

Arboricultural Method Statement & Tree Protection Plan (2020-08-02 Project No. 200)
Biodiversity Survey & Report / Arborist and Ecological Services Ltd Supplementary Statement
Drainage Strategy

Viability Appraisal — prepared by CP Viability Feb 2021

AMENDMENTS (N.B. Plans shown crossed out have been superseded by later plans)
14/08/2020

Arboricultural Method Statement & Tree Protection Plan (2020-08-02 Project No. 200)
Drainage Strategy

1445-02 Rev-bB—Site-Layout

15/10/2020

1445-02 Rev- K—Site Layout

26/10/2020

1445-02 Rev N — Site Layout

1445-07 Rev1 Block/LocationPlan
18/10/2020

1445-02 Rev O — Site Layout
1445-04—Streetscene/-CarPorts/ Sections

07/12/2020
Arborist and Ecological Services Ltd Supplementary Statement

14/01/2021

1445-02 Rev P — Site Layout

1445-04 Rev A — Streetscene / Car Ports / Sections

1445-18 - 3 Bed Type — Detached (Elevations and Floor Plans)

27/01/2021
Viability Appraisal — prepared by CP Viability Jan 2021

9



EIA SCREENING OPINION

The proposals that are the subject of this application are not Schedule 1 development but
they are an urban development project as described in criteria 10b of Schedule 2 of The
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017

However, the proposals are not in a sensitive location as defined by Regulation 2 and by
virtue of their size and scale, they do not exceed the threshold for EIA development set out in
Schedule 2.

Therefore, the proposals that are the subject of this application are not EIA development.

HISTORY
00/00383/TPO — Crown and prune TPO BOL/40 (Lime) — GRANTED CONDITIONALLY

01/00475/FUL - Erection of a conservatory to front, two storey extension to side, and a
detached two storey dwelling — GRANTED CONDITIONALLY

02/00577/TPO - To prune trees running along the drive (Trees T8, T10, T12, T14, T16 and
T18 of TPO BOL/27) - GRANTED CONDITIONALLY

05/00134/FULMAJ - Two storey nursing home, with basement parking and plant room
(revised scheme) - GRANTED CONDITIONALLY

07/00717/TPO - Pruning works to trees T13, T11, T9, T7, T5 and T3 (TPO 27) - GRANTED
CONDITIONALLY

08/00183/FUL - Two storey extension to side and rear - REFUSED
08/00590/TPO - Pruning works (T1- Lime) — GRANTED CONDITIONALLY

10/00112/VARMAJ - Two storey residential nursing home with basement parking and plant
room (extension of time period for start of previously approved scheme ref
05/00134/FULMAJ) - GRANTED CONDITIONALLY

14/00410/TPO - Crown reduction to two trees by 25% (T8 and T10- BOL/27) — GRANTED
CONDITINALLY

CONSULTATIONS

BDC Engineer (Drainage) — 05/05/2020

Comments received from the Engineers confirming that subject to acceptance of the SuDS
design by DCC (LLFA), we must ensure the developer submits an Operation and
Maintenance Plan (in accordance with section 32 of the SuDS Manual) which provides details
of the arrangements for the lifetime management and maintenance of the SuDS features
together with contact details. The developer must also ensure any temporary drainage
arrangements during construction gives due consideration to the prevention of surface water
runoff onto the public highway and neighbouring properties.

BDC Housing
10



No comments received.

BDC Leisure — 16/06/2020

Comments received from Leisure Services confirming that the development proposals meet
the trigger requirements for policy ITCR5 of the Local Plan in respect of securing green space
and play provision in the district. Contributions have been calculated based upon the scale of
the development proposals for a commuted sum contribution towards Gloves Lane
Recreation Ground for Equipped Play of £836 per dwelling; and towards Gloves Lane
Recreation Ground and Westhouses Recreation Ground for improving playing pitches /
ancillary facilities of £1022 per dwelling. A maintenance sum for a period of 10 to 15 years
will also need to be negotiated.

BDC Streetscene Manager — 23/04/2020

Comments received advise that the access roads will need to be constructed to a
specification capable of taking a Refuse Collection Vehicle with a GVW of 32 tonnes. If the
carriageway is not to be adopted as public highway then we would also need an indemnity
agreement regarding vehicular damage. Alternatively a presentation point would need to be
constructed near the adopted highway.

Coal Authority — 05/05/2020

Comments received confirming that the Coal Authority concurs with the conclusion /
recommendations of the Coal Mining Risk Assessment, 29 January 2020 based on the
professional opinion of EnviroSolution Ltd that there is currently a risk to the proposed
development from coal mining legacy. In order to confirm the exact ground conditions
present beneath this site, to inform the extent of remedial / mitigatory measures that may be
required to ensure that the development is safe and stable, intrusive site investigations
(Section 4) should be undertaken prior to commencement of development.

Community Arts Development Officer
No comments received.

DCC Highways — 16/05/2020

The Highway Authority recommends that a more suitable drawing (ideally a topographical
survey), clearly dimensioned, is submitted to demonstrate the full extent of achievable
visibility from a 2.4m set-back distance to the carriageway channel and at 1.0 m into the
carriageway. The currently recommended distance of 2.4m x 54m is based on Primrose Hill
being a classified road subject to a 30mph speed limit with a general lack of side friction in the
immediate vicinity. Any lesser provision will need to be supported by the results of a traffic
speed survey with the sightlines being commensurate with 85" percentile wet weather speeds
and taking into account approach gradient.

The provision of passing places, which should be intervisible, would be considered
acceptable in principle and the dimensions of these should accommodate the largest vehicle
likely to frequently enter the site. As previously mentioned it is currently not possible to print
plans to scale to determine the dimensions of what is indicated.

The development proposals will be likely to result in an increase in vehicular activity
associated with the site, especially in the event of Phase 2 being brought forward, therefore,
it's recommended that the applicant is given further opportunity to submit details to

11



satisfactorily address the above exit visibility concerns. In the event that sightlines meeting
current design guidance can’t be provided, the applicant should be requested to submit
further details demonstrating that predicted vehicle trips generated by the proposed would be
less than, or equitable with, those generated by the extant use of the site.

DCC Developer Contributions — 14/05/2020

Comments received advising on primary and secondary education projections as follows:
Primary level education - Analysis of the current and future projected number of pupils on roll,
together with the impact of approved planning applications shows that the normal area
primary school would have sufficient capacity to accommodate the 3 primary pupils arising
from the proposed development.

Secondary level education - An evaluation of recently approved residential developments of
11 or above units or over 1,000 square metres of floorspace within the normal area of Tibshelf
Community School shows new development totalling 17 dwellings, which would result in
demand for 3 secondary places. Analysis of the current and future projected number of pupils
on roll, together with the impact of approved planning applications shows that the normal area
secondary school would not have sufficient capacity to accommodate the 3 secondary arising
from the proposed development.

Mitigation - The above analysis indicates that there would be a need to mitigate the impact of
the proposed development on school places in order to make the development acceptable in
planning terms as the normal area secondary school would not have sufficient capacity to
accommodate the additional pupils generated by the proposed development. The County
Council therefore requests financial contributions as follows:

£77,645.70 for 3 secondary places at Tibshelf Community School towards additional
education facilities.

Derbyshire Constabulary — 29/04/2020

Comments received confirming that there are no objections to the principle of residential
development at this location. The detail of phase 1 is broadly acceptable from a community
safety perspective, with reservations about boundaries and lighting. There is no detail
available online regarding boundary specification, so this will need to be considered / agreed
having regard to crime prevention design specifications. Noting there is no provision for
communal lighting shown with the application submission and as the access road is not to be
adopted comments suggest that the application should make provision for a landlord supply
and present a suitable public lighting scheme for communal areas of the site.

Derbyshire Wildlife Trust — 20/05/2020, 26/01/2021 and 28/01/2021

Comments were received advising that additional bat and reptile survey work was undertaken
(building 3 - bats; and slow worm / grass snake were potential target species), and
consideration was also given to potential impacts on breeding birds. Further comments /
advice was offered in due course alongside recommendations regarding suitable mitigation
and biodiversity enhancements for the development as a whole.

Additional information was subsequently provided which led DWT to offer detailed comments
/ suggestions for conditions to address:

Protection of breeding birds during construction - To ensure that breeding birds are protected
from harm we advise that a condition should be imposed requiring that “No removal of
hedgerows, trees, shrubs or brambles shall take place between 1st March and 31st August

12




inclusive, unless a recent survey has been undertaken by a competent ecologist to assess
the nesting bird activity on site during this period, and details of measures to protect the
nesting bird interest on the site, have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority and then implemented as approved.”

Trees - Development should be implemented in accordance with the measures set out in the
Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan (Crawshaw Arborcare Ltd, August
2020).

Landscape and Biodiversity Enhancement and Management Plan (LBEMP) - A LBEMP shall
be submitted to, and be approved in writing by, the LPA prior to the commencement of the
development. The LBEMP should combine both the ecology and landscape disciplines and
include the following:-

a) Description and location of native tree and shrub planting.

b) Locations of 5 integrated swift bricks, hedgehog access gaps between gardens holes

c) Appropriate management aims, methods and practices to maintain enhancement features.
d) Prescriptions for management actions.

e) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being rolled
forward over a ten-year period).

f) Details of the body or organization responsible for implementation of the plan.

g) Ongoing monitoring visits, targets and remedial measures when conservation aims and
objectives of the plan are not being met.

The LBEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which the
long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the management
body(ies) responsible for its delivery. The approved plan will be implemented in accordance
with the approved details.

In addition it was agreed with DWT that bat survey work of the building identified could not be
reasonably requested / required, as the building lay outside of the application site boundary
and was not affected by these specific development proposals.

Environmental Health / Protection — 11/09/2020

Comments received confirming they have reviewed the application documents and the coal
mining risk assessment. This has shown that there is the potential for mine gas and made
ground to be present on the site. Therefore, in the event that planning permission is granted
for this site, we would recommend that the standard pre-commencement contaminated land
planning condition is imposed.

Health & Safety Executive — 28/04/2020

Response received advises that the proposed development site identified does not currently
lie within the consultation distance (CD) of a major hazard site or major accident hazard
pipeline; therefore at present HSE does not need to be consulted on any developments on
this site.

Lead Local Flood Authority — 14/05/2020

As a statutory consultee for surface water the minimum details required on all major planning
applications are as follows:

» Site plan and impermeable area

» Topographic survey of the site

13



* Appropriate evidence to support how the site will drain, including confirmation of where the
surface water will outfall to (photographs / maps / a confirmation letter from a water company)
+ Basic calculations of the greenfield/brownfield runoff and discharge rates, (refer to Point

J in the Advisory Notes)

* A quick storage estimate to show the required storage volume of surface water on site and
an indication of the likely location

+ Calculations should include allowances for the current Environment Agency guidance for
climate change and urban creep (Refer to Point J in the Advisory Notes)

« Basic ground investigation (desktop survey as a minimum)

* Major developments should incorporate sustainable drainage systems unless there is clear
evidence that this would be inappropriate (as per National Planning Policy Framework

165).

These details are required at the early planning stage to demonstrate that the proposed site is
able to drain and that due consideration has been given to the space required on site for
surface water storage.

Parish Council — 29/04/2020

Comments received asking that thorough checks for Bats are carried out. Also comments
raise concerns that flooding is a continuous problem on this site, and measures to alleviate
this problem will need to be addressed. In their view the current sewage pipes will not be
sufficient to sustain the proposed development. There are also concerns raised that the
narrow access to the site for the number of cars there could be on a development of this size
is a concern, along with parking.

Severn Trent Water
No comments received.

Urban Design Officer — 15/05/2020

Comments were received from the UDO offering feedback on the initial application
submission and site layout iteration as follows:

Design and Access Statement - The design statement is relatively brief and although it
identifies the main constraints, such as protected trees, topography, coal mining legacy,
restricted entrance lane and the presence of neighbouring dwellings. However, these are only
addressed in a relatively superficial manner and no design principles are identified as a result,
that should then inform the approach to the subsequent design. The long distance view to the
south and the relationship of the site to the countryside to the north and not identified.
Consequently, the proposed design and layout does not then necessarily take account of the
site constraints. For example the location of some plots to the adjacent bungalows results in
an unneighbourly relationship that would appear dominant and overbearing to the outlook of
some residents. This would be exacerbated by the use of tall house types and the DAS does
not identify the presence of short neighbour gardens or change in levels between the
proposals and the adjacent properties. The use of tall house types throughout much of the
site also increases the scale and presence of the development as seen from Primrose Hill (as
seen along The Paddock).

Importantly, the primary characteristic of the site is its mature landscape defined by large
established trees, which create a strong sylvan quality and an attractive skyline.

Although tree maintenance and remedial works are required to many, the trees themselves
have the potential to provide a fine focus to the development, particularly within the central
part of the site. However, the DAS does not appear to recognise this opportunity in terms of

14




creating a ‘vision’ or sense of place for the development. The layout seeks to remove several
key trees or fit closely around them, rather than fully incorporating them into the heart of
layout.

The proximity of trees to some plots will dominate gardens and is likely to lead to pressure to
remove them in the future.

Development is shown to occupy the low point of the site (SW corner) and it is currently
unclear how the site would be drained. For example is this areas required to accommodate a
SuDS pond or would a pumping station be required. If so, sufficient space would be required
to accommodate this infrastructure together with an associated easement. As such, a clearer
indication of drainage proposals should be provided.

The site lies adjacent to open countryside along its northern boundary (currently shown as
blue land) and this presents a potential opportunity for a design to address the landscape and
benefit from an outlook over towards the fields (see Phasing below).

Guidance in Successful Places (2013) recommends that a site analysis should inform the site
design principles and the subsequent layout. The site analysis is not considered to be robust
and it is unclear how the resulting layout has taken into account the constraints and
opportunities.

Existing trees - The tree report accompanying the application makes a number of
recommendations, although it is unclear whether the proposed layout has responded to
these. For example the internal road through the centre of the site would necessitate the
removal of two Category A Trees (T19 and T21). The arborists suggestion to rotate Plot 1-3
away from the Lime trees has not been implemented etc.

Phasing - Splitting the site into two phases (Phase 2 currently shown as conversion and
extension of the existing empty building) limits options for the internal layout of the site and
results in a number of negative impacts, such as the removal of a number of high quality trees
in order to accommodate the internal road. If the site could be developed in a comprehensive
manner this would open up the possibility of extending the access road towards the northern
edge of the site, orienting dwellings to achieve an outlook over the adjacent countryside and
avoiding the need to remove trees to facilitate access and circulation arrangements.

Density - At the pre-application stage the applicant was advised to reduce the amount of
development in order to achieve a more appropriate layout on the site. However, the
development density remains unchanged and the application raises a number of design
concerns. A lower density development in a more generous landscape setting would assist in
easing a number of the above issues in relation to the layout and is likely to facilitate a more a
more appropriate layout.

Appearance - The proposed elevations are very plain and would benefit from the introduction
of additional architectural details, such as brick band or raised corner details, dentil courses to
verges and eaves lines etc. Notwithstanding this, the standard approach to the design and
appearance of the houses and the repetitious use of the same house types does not respond
particularly to the sylvan character of the site and a more considered architectural response to
the character of the site is strongly encouraged.

Conclusion - Overall, the layout remains very similar to that submitted for pre-application
comments. Although the application has only made some relatively minor adjustments to the
design, the proposals are not considered to have responded positively to pre-application
advice. The site appraisal is superficial and the opportunities and constraints do not appear to
have necessarily informed the resulting layout, which lacks generosity and has a negative
impact on a number of trees. In its current form the application is not considered meet the
requirements of Policy SC3 High Quality Development or guidance contained within
Successful Places (2013).

15



All consultation responses are available to view in full on the Council’s website.

PUBLICITY
The application has been advertised in the local press (30/04/2020), by site notice posted
(19/05/2020) and 19 neighbouring properties notified by letter (12/05/2020).

In total there have been 8 representations received, with a summary of issues raised as
follows:

Will boundary walls be retained including walls to outhouses along the boundary?

Proposed dwellings in phase 2 will impact on daylight and will create feeling of being closed
in.

Potential impact from lighting within the development.

Will noise and dust be controlled during construction?

Bats regularly seen at the site and have roosted at the property.

Flood risk to SW corner due to underground stream.

Plans do not accurately show Glen Vine.

No drainage details provided for foul or surface water.

No local resident consultation has been undertaken as stated in the design and access
Statement.

Brick boundary wall to western boundary is in poor condition and has partially collapsed. Will
this wall be repaired?

Problems with tracking the application and reading comments via the Council’s website.
Poor maintenance of the trees along the access drive has led to residents paying for works to
be undertaken. Who will be responsible for maintaining the trees and open space in the
future? Enforceable maintenance schedule needed.

Impact of more vehicles using access drive to rear of houses on Dodgewell Close, increased
noise and pollution and general disturbance.

Broadly supportive of the development as site is derelict.

Concerns re: volume of traffic that will use the access road and positon of passing places
close to neighbouring boundaries.

It should be noted that this application was originally submitted in March 2020, when the first
national lockdown was announced and enforced. Bolsover District Council took a decision at
that time to delay undertaking planning application publicity (inc. sending out neighbour
notification letters) and planning committee meetings were temporarily postponed. This
decision was lifted in May 2020 and meetings resumed in September 2020. The application
has subsequently been publicised according to the DMPO.

- A number of representations received initially received raised the absence of

neighbour notification as an issue, but this matter was resolved.

All neighbour representations are available to view in full on the Council’s website.

POLICY

Bolsover District Local Plan (“the adopted Local Plan”)

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in accordance
with policies in the adopted Local Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In
this case, the most relevant Local Plan policies include:

16




Policy SS1: Sustainable Development

Policy SS2: Scale of Development

Policy SS3: Spatial Strategy and Distribution of Development
Policy LC3: Type and Mix of Housing

Policy SC1: Development within the Development Envelope
Policy SC2: Sustainable Design and Construction

Policy SC3: High Quality Development

Policy SC7: Flood Risk

Policy SC9: Biodiversity and Geodiversity

Policy SC10: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows

Policy SC11: Environmental Quality (Amenity)

Policy SC13: Water Quality

Policy SC14: Contaminated / Unstable Land

Policy SC15: Hazardous Installations

Policy ITCR5: Green Space and Play Provision

Policy ITCR7: Playing Pitches

Policy ITCR10: Supporting Sustainable Transport Patterns
Policy ITCR11: Parking Provision

Policy I11: Plan Delivery and the Role of Developer Contributions

National Planning Policy Framework (“the Framework”)

The National Planning Policy Framework sets out the Government’s planning policies for
England and how these should be applied. The Framework is therefore a material
consideration in the determination of this application and policies in the Framework most
relevant to this application include:

Paragraphs 7-10: Achieving sustainable development

Paragraphs 47-48: Determining applications

Paragraphs 54-57: Planning conditions and obligations

Paragraphs 91, 92 and 94: Promoting healthy and safe communities

Paragraphs 96 and 98: Open space and recreation

Paragraphs 108-111: Promoting sustainable transport

Paragraph 118: Making effective use of land

Paragraphs 124-128: Achieving well-designed places

Paragraph 153: Meeting the challenge of climate change

Paragraph 165: Sustainable Drainage Systems

Paragraphs 170 and 175: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Paragraphs 178-181: Ground conditions and pollution

Paragraphs 184 and 189-197: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Supplementary Planning Documents

Successful Places: A Guide to Sustainable Housing Layout and Design — Supplementary
Planning Document.

Parking Standards — Consultation Draft Supplementary Planning Document.

ASSESSMENT

It is considered that the main issues in the determination of this application are:

. the principle of the development;

. highway safety considerations, including whether the development would be provided

17



with a safe and suitable access and the impact of the development on the local road

network;

. landscape and visual impact of the development;

. whether the development can deliver a suitable design and layout and provides
sufficient residential amenity;

. the ecology impacts of the development (inc. trees and wildlife);

. potential contamination risks / land stability;

. drainage requirements; and

. impacts on infrastructure, including recreation and leisure, education and health
facilities.

These issues are addressed in turn in the following sections of this report

Principle of the Development

The application site lies within the development envelope of Blackwell, as defined under
Policy SC1 of the Local Plan, where the principle of development is supported subject to the
development proposals being regarded appropriate in terms of scale, design and location to
the character and function of the area.

Furthermore under the provisions of Policies SS2 and SS3 of the Local Plan it is
acknowledged that the village of Blackwell, albeit a small rural village, is capable of
supporting some modest urban forms of development, such as that being proposed. The
village is served by a convenience store, local community facilities and several bus services
(Chesterfield, Mansfield and Alfreton).

In the context of the above the development proposals lie within the development envelope
and are a component phase of a former nursing home / vacant site’s redevelopment. Strictly
speaking these development proposals are concentrated on a site that forms the grounds of
the former nursing home (rather than the built footprint of the nursing home itself) so are
greenfield in nature; however it is anticipated that the conversion of the existing building will
proceed as a second phase of development in due course.

Overall the principle of housing development on the site is considered to be acceptable.

Highway Safety /| Access

The Local Highways Authority (LHA) commented on the original application submission
seeking the provision / demonstration of visibility splays measuring 2.4m x 54m in each
direction, based upon the 30mph speed limit of Primrose Hill (which is classified). The LHA
acknowledged that the development proposals would likely increase traffic activity at the site,
so the need to secure demonstration of appropriate visibility splays was necessary. It was
noted that any lesser provision would need to be supported by the results of a traffic speed
survey with the sightlines being commensurate with 85th percentile wet weather speeds and
taking into account approach gradient. The LHA also acknowledged that the extant use of the
site as a nursing home was a fall-back position in terms of traffic activity associated with the
site access, which could be considered.

Various iterations of the application proposals have been prepared since the receipt of the

18



original comments from the LHA, however these have not been accompanied by any speed
survey data. The site does however have an extant permission to operate as a nursing home
and in 2010 a much larger extension to the nursing home was also permitted but not
implemented.

On site it is acknowledged that exit visibility from the site access is better in the critical
direction than the non-critical direction (see photographs taken below). The presence of
double yellow lines in this particular locality ensure that views are not restricted by the
presence of on street parking.

Previous topographical surveys undertaken at the site demonstrate that exit visibility
measuring 2.4m x 43m is achievable from the site access, and this has previously been
accepted by the LHA. Therefore whilst it is noted that the LHA continue to request the
demonstration of visibility splays measuring 2.4m x 54m (without speed surveys), it is
considered on balance that the likely traffic generation from the development proposals
compared to the extant nursing home permission are comparable. EXxit visibility splays of
2.4m x 43m are therefore considered to be acceptable.

Looking in more detail at the layout of the development proposals, each unit is shown to be
provided with 2 no. dedicated off street parking spaces which accords with the parking
standards set in Appendix 8.2 of the Local Plan.

Overall therefore, subject to the imposition of appropriate and necessary planning conditions
requiring the implementation / provision of the visibility splays and plot parking the
development proposals are considered to be acceptable.

Landscape and Visual Impact

The application site is enclosed with existing development from bungalows on The Paddocks
and Blackwell Primary School / Glen Vine off Pendean Close to the south; two storey
dwellings off Dodgewell Close and Church view to the east; the built footprint of the former
nursing home building lies to the immediate north; and the playing fields to Blackwell Primary
School lie to the west.

19



In terms of landscape / visual impact there are glimpses of the development site from
Primrose Hill ascertained between the houses which surround the site, however any
development seen from these perspectives are likely to be against the backdrop of the current
nursing home property which sits on a tier that is elevated above the levels of the application
site. Levels across the site generally increase south to north.

In the context of Policy SC8 of the Local Plan it is considered that the development proposals
will assimilate with its surroundings and will not cause any significant harm to the character,
quality, distinctiveness or sensitivity of landscape, or to important features. In respect of
landscape and visual impact the development proposals are considered to be acceptable.

Design and Layout (inc. Residential Amenity)

Alongside consideration of advice contained in the Council’s adopted Supplementary
Planning Document ‘Successful Places’ - Housing Layout and Design Guide and Policy SC2
and SC3 of the Local Plan the details of the proposed site layout have undergone a number
of variations / iterations since submission. These changes also respond to the receipt of the
Urban Design Officer initial comments and other site constraints, leading to the latest site
layout proposed (Rev P) being prepared for consideration.

As amended the scheme now proposes a development of 16 no. dwellings 3 bed units which
are either semi-detached or detached in nature. The layout has been amended to address
concerns relating to the relationship of the new development proposals to existing
neighbouring properties, having regard to separation distances and levels; as well as the
relationship of the new dwellings to protected trees. The driveway layout and access /
servicing details have also been amended.

Sﬁ[r@@it S@@[m@ Plots 3 - 12

Having regard to the relative separation distances achieved between plots and existing
neighbouring properties (inc. the nursing home building) all units achieve minimum distances
sought between facing windows and garden boundaries guided by the adopted SPD.
Furthermore the smallest private garden areas of the overall development proposal (plots 5
and 6) measure approximately 55sqm in area, which are considered to be at the lower end of
the minimum threshold but are acceptable. These units also adjoin the playing field of the
school to the west so these areas are unobstructed beyond their own private garden areas
created, which also improves amenity.

The mixture of terraced, semi-detached and detached properties proposed is considered
appropriate in this location and is considered to be generally reflective of the surrounding

20



area. It is acknowledged that the initial layout did not relate well to its surroundings in terms
of the earlier distribution and location of the proposed two storey dwellings that were close to
bungalows on adjoining sites, but this has been suitably addressed through submitted
amendments. Plot 1 and 2 (which are detached) now sit more comfortably with the
neighbouring bungalows to the south (The Paddocks).

——
il ]
| -
!l'__‘J il oL 12080 | [Slab S 1005 Accums Dive '
o =W

‘ Plot 1

==_Fynical Site Section

H
i
)
T

Materials, finishes and a boundary treatments will all need to be agreed subject to planning
condition as these details do not accompany the current submission. In addition conditions to
control the final hard and soft landscaping treatment of the site are also recommended and
these will address the comments made by the Crime Prevention Design Advisor relating to
boundary treatments and external lighting details to all communal driveways / access points.

Overall it is considered that the revised layout has satisfied the concerns of the Urban Design
Officer and on balance, the design and layout of the overall scheme is considered to be
acceptable. By virtue of the presence of mature protected trees and the variance in levels
across the site, the layout submitted achieved an appropriate design compromise.

Ecoloqy / Biodiversity (inc. Trees and Wildlife)

The Derbyshire Wildlife Trust (DWT) has considered the submitted ecology information and
consider that the impact of the development has for the most part now been satisfactorily
assessed.

Where there are any outstanding matters of detail, DWT has advised that these can be
covered by the imposition of appropriate planning conditions which require works to take
place in accordance with the Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) and Tree Protection
Plan (TPP), and further details to be drawn up and submitted for later approval relating to new
landscaping detail and ecological enhancement / mitigation measures.

The access driveway leading up to the parcel of land where the 16 no. dwelling are proposed
is lined with mature trees which are protected by Tree Preservation Order (TPO) BOL/27 and
an addition number of trees close to the southern boundary of the development parcel are
also protected separately by TPO BOL/40.

21



MyMaps - NEDDC and BDC
QMﬂMAPS -
BOLSOVER & ME DERBYSHIRE
W aom e e

Author:  S. Kay

20/00166/FUL
Date: 24/02/2021

Aberleigh Manor

~[Nursing Home)

Blackwell Community Primary
and Nursery School
9]

PEND AN gy :
100 [y : i f
o0 [ Y

_",‘}').z i
| Q9 | Primrose Hill ==
, B Cf |

PRIMROSE HILL f
{) ,-) L 1

ESS < |

/ |I

base right. All ights reserved (100019665) 2021

6 rown dopyright and databa

The trees are in need of some management / maintenance works but the majority of them are
capable of retention alongside the layout of the proposed development. The AMS and TPP

submitted demonstrates that above ground construction measures can be incorporated where

there is a requirement to form any hard surfaces that fall within the protected trees root
protection areas (RPAs) to create driveways or extend the access road, and the footprint of all
the buildings have been moved outside of any RPAs illustrated with the exception of an Ash

tree located in G1 of BOL/40 which will have to be removed (but is identified as a category U
tree (with a poor life expectancy) in the AMS anyway).

It is noted that there are a number of trees on site that are not specifically covered by the
TPO, whose retention therefore cannot be insisted upon, but the AMS and TPP demonstrates

which trees are worthy of retention and protection and in general it is considered that an
appropriate compromise is achieved to enable the development to come forward without

constraint to the future health / wellbeing of the retained TPO trees.
Regardless of this planning application, a separate TPO tree works application will be

necessary to cover the specific works deemed necessary to facilitate the development
proposals and remove the category U trees as set out in the supporting AMS. Replacement

trees will be secured where necessary as part of this application process.

It will be necessary to impose a series of planning conditions to ensure that the final details of
the above ground construction measures and root protection areas / measure, in line with the

22



latest site layout iteration (as the AMS and TPP is based on an earlier layout plan), are
agreed in writing before development commences but it is considered that there is sufficient
information supporting this application to conclude that the development proposals are
capable of being accommodated alongside the retention of the maijority of the protected trees
on site in accordance with Policy SC10 of the Local Plan.

Furthermore in accordance with the requirements of Policy SC9 of the Local Plan conditions
securing a Landscape and Biodiversity Enhancement and Management Plan (LBEMP) will
deliver the appropriate landscaping and biodiversity enhancement measures deemed
necessary by DWT and are recommended for inclusion in the event of planning permission
being granted.

Contamination / Land Stability

Under the provisions of Policy SC14 of the Local Plan both the Environmental Protection
Officer (EPO) and the Coal Authority have reviewed the application submission and historical
files, having regard to the nature of the development proposals.

Both have confirmed that whilst there is potential former land contamination and coal mining
legacy issues which may affect the development site, these issues can be investigated and
appropriately remediated (as detailed in the Coal Mining Risk Assessment and Land Survey).
A condition can be included in the event that planning permission is granted for this site, for
further assessment of the site to be undertaken in respect of contamination / coal mining risk
and where that assessment shows it to be necessary to carry out appropriate mitigation to
deal with that contamination.

Drainage

Foul Water

No consultation response has been received from the water company in respect of foul
drainage and it must be assumed therefore that they do not have any objections to the
proposal; the final design and provision of foul drainage is also a matter dealt with under the
Building Regulations.

Surface Water

Following the submission of additional information in response to their initial comments, the
LLFA has not provided any further response in respect of surface water drainage. Itis
therefore assumed that the principle of incorporating a satisfactory drainage solution on site is
achievable subject to the final design being agreed as a pre-commencement condition
requirement alongside details of an implementation and management of any drainage
scheme, including details for surface water management during the construction period.
These recommended conditions also cover the comments raised by the Council’s Drainage
Engineer and are recommended for inclusion in the event of planning permission being
granted.

Infrastructure Provision (inc. recreation, leisure, education and health facilities)

Green Space and Play Provision - Policy ITCR5: Green Space and Play Provision, does not
require open space provision for sites of this size (less than 25 dwellings) but does expect

23




new residential developments of more than 10 units to make reasonable financial
contributions, either for new green spaces, or to improve green spaces, falling within the
following walking distances:

* Equipped Play Areas within 400 metres

* Amenity Green Space within 500 metres

» Recreation Grounds or Semi-Natural Green Space within 800 metres

Blackwell has an under provision of open space — 1.73ha of additional green space is
required to meet the minimum standard.

As the proposed development exceeds 10 units but is less than 25 dwellings, a s106
commuted sum contribution has been requested to improve the following areas of green
space, all of which fall below the 60% quality standard referred to in the local plan (as advised
by the Leisure Officer):
- Equipped Play Area: Gloves Lane Recreation Ground
- Recreation Ground / Semi-Natural Green Space: Gloves Lane (Blackwell Bridleway 31
/ Tibshelf Bridleway 4, which provides access for pedestrians, cyclists and horse riders
from Blackwell to Doe Hill Country Park / Silverhill Trail / Five Pits Trail).

Using the current policy formula the commuted sum would be £13,728 (16 dwellings x £858
per dwelling).

Built & Outdoor Sports Facilities - Policy ITCR7 requires that if quality improvements are
needed to playing pitches, new residential development of more than 10 dwellings will be
expected to make financial contributions to the improvement of those playing pitches and/or
their ancillary facilities; The Leisure Officer has advised that quality improvements are
required to the Gloves Lane Recreation Ground and Westhouses Recreation Ground.

Using the current policy formula the commuted sum would be £16,352 (16 dwellings x £1022
per dwelling)?.

Education - Derbyshire County Council as Education Authority has advised that Blackwell
Community Primary & Nursery School have sufficient available capacity to accommodate the
number of pupils projected to arise out of this development, unlike Tibshelf Community School
that is already at capacity, such that a financial contribution of £77,645.70 for 3 secondary
places at Tibshelf Community School towards additional education facilities.

Health Facilities - No comments have been received from the North Derbyshire CCG in
response to this planning application consultation and no request received for any
contribution towards primary / secondary care services arising from the development
proposals.

Having regard to the contributions which have been sought to address infrastructure demand
/ provision arising from the development proposals these are noted to total £107,725.70 and

" Please note this figure has been adjusted from the original consultee response from Leisure to reflect the
reduction in units from 17 to 16 and the RPI applied to 2019 figures.

2 Please note this figure has been adjusted from the original consultee response from Leisure to reflect the
reduction in units from 17 to 16.

24



contribute towards education and open space / play provision. As part of the application
process the applicant has raised the issue of viability, advising that the S106 contributions
requested would adversely impact upon the viability and deliverability of the development
proposals.

Under the provisions of Policy 111 of the Local Plan the applicant agreed to appoint an
independent viability consultant to undertake an appraisal of the scheme to explore the
potential impacts upon viability, if the full suite of S106 contributions were to be secured. The
applicant and the Council agreed to the appointment of CP Viability to undertake this
appraisal, which was finalised and reported in January 2021.

The Viability Appraisal (VA) confirms that the scheme is not viable, if the associated S106
contributions are secured against planning permission for the development proposals, and
therefore it was necessary to consider whether there are over-riding public benefits to the
scheme to recommend that planning permission is granted without full development plan
compliance. Without any contributions being secured the developer profit margin is still
calculated as low as 4.4% (which is significantly short of the minimum 15% target profit set in
Planning Practice Guidance), but the advice contained in the VA recommends that to ensure
the best possible chance of the scheme coming forward there is justification to remove all
planning policy contributions.

In this regard it is therefore accepted that the development proposals are severely
constrained by viability. Noting that the site is currently vacant, there is a risk that if
development cannot be facilitated through a positive planning permission it will fall further into
disrepair and potentially create anti-social behaviour issues.

It is acknowledged that the site is constrained due to other material planning constraints
(protected trees) which naturally impact upon the scale and scope of development density
achievable on site. Itis considered that the latest site layout submission achieves an
appropriate balance in respect of these constraints and therefore it is considered on balance
that it is in the public interest to support the development proposals despite the contribution
shortfall.

CONCLUSION / PLANNING BALANCE

In conclusion, despite the development proposals not being able to meet S106 contributions
required by policy ITCRS5, ITCR7 and II1 of the Local Plan (open space / play provision and
education) it is considered that it is in the public interest to approve the application proposals.
The former nursing home is currently vacant and it is clear from the application submission
that the site owner does not intend to re-open the business, therefore the site poses a risk of
falling into disrepair and attracting Anti-social behaviour if a new use or redevelopment is not
secured.

Clearly there are constraints affecting the site which limit the scale and amount of
development which can be accommodated and therefore naturally there is a demonstrable
knock on effect on viability. An independent viability appraisal has been undertaken which
shows that the development would not be economically viable. It is considered to be
appropriate to grant planning permission without open space / play provision and education
contribution) on this occasion so that that this development can still be brought forward in line
with the local plan.

25



In all other respects, the application is for the most part considered to be acceptable in
planning terms for the reasons set out in the above report and although there are some minor
technical issues outstanding, these are very likely resolvable subject to conditions and are
unlikely therefore to weigh negatively in the overall balance of considerations, such that a
recommendation to grant permission is proposed.

RECOMMENDATION
The current application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

Conditions

1. The development shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of
this permission.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved drawings and documents unless specifically stated otherwise in the
conditions below:

1445-11 — Location Plan

1445-04 — 3 Bed Type (Elevations and Floor Plans)

1445-02 Rev P — Site Layout

1445-04 Rev A — Streetscene / Car Ports / Sections

1445-18 - 3 Bed Type — Detached (Elevations and Floor Plans)

Arboricultural Method Statement & Tree Protection Plan (2020-08-02 Project No. 200)

Drainage

3. No development shall take place, other than site clearance works, until a detailed
design and associated management and maintenance plan of the surface water drainage for
the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

4. No development, other than site clearance works, shall take place until a detailed
assessment has been provided to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, to
demonstrate that the proposed destination for surface water accords with the drainage
hierarchy as set out in paragraph 80 reference ID: 7-080-20150323 of the planning practice
guidance.

5. Prior to commencement of the development, other than site clearance works, the
applicant shall submit for approval to the Local Planning Authority details indicating how
additional surface water run-off from the site will be avoided during the construction phase.
The applicant may be required to provide collection, balancing and/or settlement systems for
these flows. The approved system shall be operating to the satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority, before the commencement of any works, which would lead to increased surface
water run-off from site during the construction phase.

6. Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried out by a
qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. This must demonstrate that the drainage system has been constructed as per the
agreed scheme (or detail any minor variations), provide the details of any management

26



company and state the national grid reference of any key drainage elements (surface water
attenuation devices/areas, flow restriction devices and outfalls).

Coal Authority

7. No development shall commence until intrusive site investigations have been carried
out on site to establish the exact situation in respect of coal mining legacy features. The
findings of the intrusive site investigations shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority
for consideration and approval in writing. The intrusive site investigations shall be carried out
in accordance with authoritative UK guidance.

Where the findings of the intrusive site investigations (required by the condition above)
identify that coal mining legacy on the site poses a risk to surface stability, no development
shall commence until a detailed remediation scheme to protect the development from the
effects of such land instability has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority for
consideration and approval in writing. Following approval, the remedial works shall be
implemented on site in complete accordance with the approved details.

Contamination

8. Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other than that
required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation must not commence
until conditions A to D have been complied with. If unexpected contamination is found after
development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the
unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning Authority in writing
until condition D has been complied with in relation to that contamination.

A. Site Characterisation

An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the
planning application, must be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature
and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The
contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a
written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is subject to the approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority. The report of the findings must include:

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;

(if) an assessment of the potential risks to:
* human health,
* property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
woodland and service lines and pipes,
+ adjoining land,
» groundwaters and surface waters,
* ecological systems,
« archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).

27



This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s ‘Model
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’.

B. Submission of Remediation Scheme

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by
removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural
and historical environment must be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the
Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed
remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management
procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under
Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land
after remediation.

C. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme

The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to
the commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority
must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme
works.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a
verification report (referred to in PPS23 as a validation report) that demonstrates the
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced, and is subject to the approval
in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

D. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to
the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with the requirements of condition A, and where remediation is necessary a
remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of condition B,
which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a
verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority in accordance with condition C.

E. Importation of soil

In the event that it is proposed to import soil onto site in connection with the development, the
proposed soil shall be sampled at source and analysed in a laboratory that is accredited
under the MCERTS Chemical testing of Soil Scheme for all parameters requested (where this
is available), the results of which shall be submitted to the LPA for consideration. Only the
soil approved in writing by the LPA shall be used on site.

28



This memorandum in no way indicates that this site is currently considered to be
contaminated, merely that the potential for contamination exists on this site. We do not
currently have any entries on our register of contaminated land as we are presently at the
stage of inspecting the District and identifying potentially contaminated sites. If any of these
sites warrants regulatory action, an entry will be made on the public register.

As the whole of Bolsover district is considered to be a radon affected area we would advise
the applicant obtains a Radon Risk report for the site. A report may be obtained from Public
Health England http://www.ukradon.org/

Ecology

9. No removal of vegetation or work to buildings will take place between 1st February and
31st September inclusive, unless a recent survey has been undertaken by a competent
ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity on site during this period, and details of measures
to protect the nesting bird interest on the site, have first been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority and then implemented as approved.

10.  No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works, vegetation
clearance) until a construction environmental management plan (CEMP: Biodiversity) has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP
(Biodiversity) shall include the following:
a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities.
b) Identification and demarcation of “biodiversity protection zones” (to include
hedgerows and trees).
c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to
avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method
statements and should include a badger working method statement).
d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features.
e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present on
site to oversee works.
f) Responsible persons and lines of communication.
g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or
similarly competent person (as necessary).
h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.

11.  Alandscape and biodiversity enhancement and management plan (LBEMP) must be
submitted to, and be approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of the development. The LBEMP must combine both the ecology and
landscape disciplines and ensure that there is no net loss of biodiversity and ideally providing
a measurable net gain. It should include the following:-
a) Description and location of habitat and species features to be created, planted,
enhanced and managed including type and locations of bird boxes (c.25 integrated
swift boxes), integrated measures for swallow, Barn Owl mitigation (based on
section 4 of the Barn Owl Report prepared by TEP July 2020), hedgehog access
gaps in gardens and details of habitat creation.
b) Aims and objectives of management for species and habitat.
c) Appropriate management methods and practices to achieve aims and
objectives.

29


http://www.ukradon.org/

d) Prescriptions for management actions.

e) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being

rolled forward over a ten-year period).

f) Details of the body or organization responsible for implementation of the plan.

g) Ongoing monitoring visits, targets and remedial measures when conservation

aims and objectives of the plan are not being met.
The LBEMP will also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which the long-
term (25 years) implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the
management body(ies) responsible for its delivery. The approved plan will be implemented in
accordance with the approved details.

12.  Prior to the occupation of any dwelling, a bat friendly lighting scheme for the access
road / driveway shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority; that scheme shall include details of implementation timescales and the approved
scheme shall be implemented as approved.

Highways

13.  Before any other operations are commenced the site access shall be modified, laid out
and constructed in accordance with a detailed design first submitted to, and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The access shall include proposed passing places as
detailed in the application submission, be constructed to base level and be provided with
visibility sightlines of 2.4m x 43m in both directions. Prior to the first occupation of any
dwelling on site, the permanent new access shall be laid out as approved and the land in
advance of the visibility sightlines shall be retained throughout the life of the development free
of any object greater than 1m in height relative to the adjoining nearside carriageway channel
level.

14. At the commencement of operations on site, space shall be provided within the site
curtilage for storage of plant and materials, site accommodation, loading and unloading of
goods vehicles, parking and manoeuvring of site operatives and visitors vehicles, laid out and
constructed in accordance with detailed designs to be submitted in advance to the Local
Planning Authority for written approval and maintained throughout the contract period in
accordance with the approved designs free from any impediment to its designated use.

15.  No development consisting of highway construction shall take place until either
confirmation has been provided that a Section 38 adoption agreement with the Highway
Authority will be completed; or details of the construction and future maintenance of the
residential access driveway(s) and footway(s) (including layout, levels, gradients,
construction, surfacing, means of surface water drainage and street lighting) have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any such details
approved shall be implemented before the first occupation of any dwelling on site and the
driveway shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved details.

16.  No dwelling shall be occupied until space has been provided within the site curtilage/
plot for the parking of residents and visitors vehicles associated with that dwelling, all to be
laid out and constructed in accordance with the approved drawings. The facilities shall be
retained throughout the life of the development free from any impediment to their designated
use, for the parking of motor vehicles at all times.

30



17.  No dwelling shall be occupied until further details for the arrangements of waste
collection from the new dwellings have been submitted to and approved in writing by the

Local Planning Authority. Details required shall demonstrate that a Refuse Collection Vehicle
with a GVW of 32 tonnes is capable of accessing and turning within the site; or alternatively
the design of a presentation / collection point positioned at the site entrance. Details shall be
implemented as approved prior to occupation of any dwelling and shall be retained throughout
the life of the development free from any impediment to their designated use.

Trees

18.  No development shall commence until the Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree
Protection Plan (Crawshaw Arborcare Ltd, August 2020) have been revised to reflect drawing
no. 1445-02 Site Layout Rev P and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for written
approval. Thereafter development shall only be implemented in accordance with the
measures set out in the approved Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan.

Materials

19.  Before construction commences on the erection of any building or wall, specifications
or representative samples of the materials to be used in all external wall and roof areas shall
first have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Statement of Decision Process

Officers have worked positively and pro-actively with the applicant to address issues raised
during the consideration of the application. The proposal has been considered against the
policies and guidelines adopted by the Council and the decision has been taken in
accordance with the guidelines of the Framework.

Equalities Statement

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 places a statutory duty on public authorities in the
exercise of their functions to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination and
advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it (i.e. “the Public Sector Equality Duty”).

In this case, there is no evidence to suggest that the development proposals would have any
direct or indirect negative impacts on any person with a protected characteristic or any group
of people with a shared protected characteristic

Human Rights Statement

The specific Articles of the European Commission on Human Rights (‘the ECHR’) relevant to
planning include Article 6 (Right to a fair and public trial within a reasonable time), Article 8
(Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence), Article 14 (Prohibition
of discrimination) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (Right to peaceful enjoyment of possessions and
protection of property).

It is considered that assessing the effects that a proposal will have on individuals and
weighing these against the wider public interest in determining whether development should
be allowed to proceed is an inherent part of the decision-making process. In carrying out this

31



‘balancing exercise’ in the above report, officers are satisfied that the potential for these
proposals to affect any individual’s (or any group of individuals’) human rights has been
addressed proportionately and in accordance with the requirements of the ECHR.

32



Agenda Item 6

Bolsover District Council

Planning Committee

10th March 2021

Update on Section 106 Agreement Monitoring

Report of the Planning Manager

Purpose of the Report

1.1

1.2

1.3

To ensure that the District Council has a robust procedure for recording and
monitoring Section 106 obligations (also referred to as S106 agreements).

S106 agreements are a type of legal agreement between the Council and
landowners/developers often completed alongside applications for planning
permission for major developments. They are needed to deal with the additional
pressures on infrastructure that result from the new development. They are only
required where the effects of the development would otherwise be unacceptable in
planning terms and where they cannot be dealt with by conditions of the planning
permission.

Report Details

Background

In accordance with the Council’s procedures for recording and monitoring Section
106 obligations this report is the quarterly status report and is intended to inform
and give members the opportunity to assess the effectiveness of the monitoring
procedures as well as receive up-to-date information on ongoing cases where
planning obligations are involved. This report accords with the Council’s monitoring
procedure which is additional to and separate from the national requirement to
produce an Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement as was reported to Planning
Committee on 13 January 2021.

It is important to provide this information to members for two key reasons: (i) if
obligations required to make a development acceptable in planning terms aren’t
properly discharged then there is a risk that necessary infrastructure will not be
provided and there would be harm to the Council’s reputation and public confidence
in the Council’s decision making; and (ii) there are strict criteria on how and when
Section 106 contributions received by the District Council should be spent; if these
criteria aren’t met then there is a risk the proposed contribution will have to be
returned to the developer and the associated infrastructure will not be provided.

Consequently, it is not only important that the District Council has a robust
procedure for recording and monitoring Section 106 obligations, it is also important
that there is appropriate oversight of how effectively these procedures work in
practice: hence the purpose of this report.

33




1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

S106 Money Received in BDC Holding Account

The current financial spreadsheet is attached as Appendix 1. Line numbers referred
to below are on the left hand side of the table at Appendix 1. The spreadsheet
shows that there is currently a total balance on hand for all S106 contributions of
£1,469,471.63.

In accordance with the Council’s procedure the following cases are highlighted
because the deadline for spending S106 money is within 1 year of the 5 year
spending deadline on the Council:-

a. Line 47 The Brambles Doe Lea, art work money. The majority of the sum
received has now been spent, however £4,361.11 was not spent before the
deadline. This will now need to be returned to the developer in accordance
with the legal agreement (unless the Developer agrees that it can be spent
on an alternative project) — This has previously been reported to Planning
Committee but despite chasing the developer for a response, other than
receiving an acknowledgement, the developer has still not confirmed how
they would like to proceed.

b. In the 4" November 2020 committee report, members where advised that
three sums of money for art, leisure and open space from the former
Woodside Stables development in Clowne needed to be spent urgently by
14/01/2021. All three sums were spent before the deadline in accordance
with the S106.

There are no other areas of immediate concern within 1 year in respects of
spending deadlines for payments received and the deadlines for expenditure.
However it should be noted that there are 9 sums that are within 2 years of the
spending deadline.

The following new S106 payments have been received by the District Council since
the previous report issued to Committee Members on 4" November 2020:-

Sports Direct, Shirebrook (Improvements to Shirebrook Cricket Club) £22,169
The following sums were paid direct to DCC:-

Mooracre Lane Education £154,432

Mooracre Lane Highways  £28,180

S106 Obligations Soon Due on Active Development Sites

In terms of current development sites, there are a number of sites where
development has been commenced and officers are monitoring progress against
S106 trigger points. The current monitoring list includes:-

Chesterfield Road, Barlborough (13/00002/VARMAJ and 16/00187/REM).
Permission for 157 dwellings plus offices and industrial units. 26 dwellings occupied
so far so no obligations triggered yet. Obligations include:-

o Sports £765/dwg, half at 50% dwgs occupied, half at 75% occupation.

o Open space plus maintenance if adopted triggered at 33% of dwgs occupied.

o Education £2,255/dwg on occupation of 75 dwgs.

34



o Affordable Housing 10% at 60% of occupation.
o Highways £111,450.34 payment for improvements to Treble Bob roundabout;
£39,364.75 roundabout contribution at 60th dwelling occupied.

Broad Lane, Hodthorpe (14/00518/OUT) 101 dwellings. Recently commenced. No
occupations yet. Obligations not yet triggered include:-
o Sport £888 per dwelling before 70 dwellings occupied.
o Play £747 per dwelling, scheme before 10" and provided before 70t
dwelling.
o Art £984 per dwelling at 70 but less the cost of natural stone boundary
walling.
o Affordable Housing 10% on site at 70 dwellings.
o £50,000 to use on the Social Club before 10 dwellings occupied.

The Edge, Mansfield Road, Clowne (12/00529). Permission for 149 dwellings now
completed. £100,000 maintenance sum payable to BDC when Public Open Space
adopted following resolution of snagging issues still being pursued. Awaiting advice
from contractor via Leisure Officer.

High Ash Farm, Mansfield Rd, Clowne (14/00057/OUTMAJ and 18/00084/OTHER).
Permission for 41 dwellings. Substantially completed now and occupied. Obligation
triggers have been reached most payments received including for Play, Education,
Footpath link, and the market housing delivery targets met discharging the
Affordable Housing obligation.

However the £10,000 art obligation is currently outstanding and this is being
pursued by the planning case officer.

Tamarisk, Mansfield Road, Clowne (20/00209/FUL). Permission for 17 dwellings.
New site commenced. S106 obligations include:-
o Education - £17,177 to DCC on first occupation (DCC have been notified of
the start and they will request payment);
o POS £14,586 for play at Arc or Edge or footpath/cycle links triggered at 10
dwellings occupied;
o Play Pitches £17,374 at 10 dwellings occupied.

Creswell Road Clowne (14/00603/FUL) permission for 28 dwellings. 18 dwellings
occupied so far and the trigger for payment will be reached very soon (20
occupations) and payment has been requested. The requirement is for a formal
leisure contribution £28,424.

Skinner Street, Creswell Phase 2 (19/00475/FUL). Permission for 88 dwellings.
Recently commenced. One occupation so far.

£15,036 has already been received for biodiversity.

Other obligations not yet triggered include:-

Sport £86,565 at 50 dwellings;

Health £41,760 by 50% occupation;

Affordable Housing 9 units: BDC to take AH on; 50% completion of AH required by
65 open market dwellings; 100% completion of AH by 70 open market dwellings.

Oxcroft Lane, Bolsover Phase 2 (15/00076/). Permission for 127 dwellings. 16

occupations so far. Obligations have been largely paid in advance. The following
have been received:-

35



£128,710 Sport by BDC 10/03/2020; and by DCC:
£316,111 and £38,105 Education 06/03/2020
£167,361 Highway improvements 02/09/2020
£2,500 Travel Plan 02/09/2020

£55,787 Mill Lane improvements 02/09/2020

O O O O O

The following are outstanding:-
o Fund up to 3 TRO's to value of £5000 each.
o Play Space to accord with scheme.
o Affordable Housing 10% on site in accordance with the scheme approved
before 70% of market dwellings occupied.

Mooracre Lane Bolsover (17/00234/FUL). Permission for 215 dwellings. 97
dwellings now occupied. Various S106 obligations (highways, affordable housing,
bus service, primary education, POS and play, SuDS, no ransom strips) with
various phased triggers. DCC have confirmed receipt of the first travel plan and
traffic monitoring contributions. The first triggers were due is at 60 occupations for
first phase education and road network payments. These were received
30/10/2021.

The first phase of 9 affordable houses are to be provided before 101 dwellings are
occupied. The developer is on track to meet this obligation.

The trigger for the bus service contribution payment of £37,388 is almost due and
payable to DCC.

Blind Lane, Bolsover (16/00463/OUT, 18/00481/REM) permission for 218 dwellings.
New site commenced. No occupations to date. Obligations not yet triggered
include:-
o Sport £191,250 50% at 150 dwellings, 50% at 200.
o Play on site and £80,000 to improve Houghton Rd rec’, at 50 dwellings.
o Education £179,618 Phased at: 25 dwellings 10%, invitation of tenders for
education works 40%, appointment of contractor 50%.
o Affordable 30% at 20% below market value.
o Health £81,562 Phased at: 25 dwellings 10%, on notice health care works
will be undertaken, 40%, appointment of contractor 50%.

Site adjacent to Pattison Street Shuttlewood (19/00083/FUL). Permission for 78
dwellings. 34 occupations to date. Obligations not yet triggered include:-
o Education: £91,192 prior to 50% occupation and a further £91,192 prior to
75% occupation.
o Affordable Housing: 8 units on site. Contracted before 50% occupied or if not
provided on site £18750 per affordable dwelling.

Brookvale Shirebrook Keepmoat (14/00594) First phase 153 dwellings now
completed. Second phase for 200 dwellings with 56 completions so far on that
phase. All s106 obligations discharged but central POS play area and multiuse
games area is to be provided shortly at 200 occupations on site (required by
condition rather than S106). Due to covid-19 lock down restrictions and the current
bad weather a delay in the play area provision until the end of March has been
agreed.

Rosewood Lodge Farm, Alfreton Road, South Normanton (14/00531/OUT).
Permission for 144 dwellings. Now at 56 occupations. Obligations are triggered prior

36



to occupation of any dwelling and the following have already been received and
reported: Sports/rec, Education and Health. The following are outstanding:-

o Art Scheme (to £10,000) with timetable for implementation. The developer is
in discussions with the Arts Officer and is looking at a later delivery
timescale.

o Affordable Housing — to be provided only if delivery targets not met for
market housing.

e Thornhill Drive, South Normanton (17/00148/OUT). Permission for 29 dwellings.8
dwellings occupied so far. S106 obligations not yet triggered include:-
o Sports £33,264 at 15 dwellings occupied
Play £28260 at 15 dwellings occupied
Art £10,000 at 15 dwellings occupied
Affordable housing 10% at 23 dwellings
Health £10,955 at 15 dwellings occupied.

o O O O

2 Conclusions and Reasons for Recommendation

2.1 The report be noted. It is for information give members the opportunity to assess
the effectiveness of the monitoring procedures as well as receive up-to-date
information on ongoing cases where planning obligations are involved.

3 Consultation and Equality Impact

3.1 There has been no public consultation in respect of this report, and there are no
negative equality impacts identified. Officers consider that increasing member
oversight of compliance with s.106 legal agreements should promote equality of
opportunity for local residents through ensuring obligations are met.

4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

4.1 Reporting the status of current s.106 legal agreements to Planning Committee
address recommendations made in the 2016 audit report and has been agreed by
members of the Planning Committee. Therefore, officers have not considered
alternative options.

5 Implications

5.1 Finance and Risk Implications

5.1.1 If obligations required to make a development acceptable in planning terms aren’t
properly discharged then there is a risk of harm to the Council’s reputation and
public confidence in the Council’s decision making. If financial contributions are not
spent within a defined period then the money has to be returned to the developer
and normally returned with interest. Therefore, there are finance and risk
implications if procedures for recording and monitoring s.106 legal agreements are
not sufficiently robust.

52 Legal Implications including Data Protection

5.2.1 There are no data protection implications insofar as s.106 legal agreements are part
of the statutory planning register and are therefore public documents. S.106 of the

37



5.3

5.3.1

6.1

8

1990 Act provides the legal framework for the acceptance and discharge of s.106
legal obligations and the procedure notes address the key legislative provisions of

this section of the 1990 Act.

Human Resources Implications

None.

Recommendation

That the Planning Committee notes this report.

Decision Information

Is the decision a Key Decision?
A Key Decision is an executive decision
which has a significant impact on two or
more District wards or which results in
income or expenditure to the Council above
the following thresholds:
BDC: Revenue - £75,000 O

Capital - £150,000 0O
NEDDC: Revenue - £100,000 O

Capital - £250,000 0O
M Please indicate which threshold applies

No

Is the decision subject to Call-In?
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

No

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been
informed

Yes

District Wards Affected

All

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or
Policy Framework

e Unlocking Our Growth
Potential (main aim);

¢ Providing our Customers with
Excellent Services

e Supporting Our Communities
to be Healthier, Safer,
Cleaner and Greener;

e Transforming Our
Organisation.

Document Information

Appendix No | Title

1 Financial Spreadsheet

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied
on to a material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the
section below. If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC)
you must provide copies of the background papers)

38




Report Author

Contact Number

Steve Phillipson

Ext 2248

39




Appendix 1 - Financial Spreadsheet

i B SR

i St
0Z/0HZ0 !.u chgosn

NS L00/E

i |
 smEpoL Kyessapolg
199118 JAUUDS b5 oLt SON J0 JES 9L 01 pUE|

Y L, 0 00°T25'EE s[EjoL YijEeH
ideoal woy 1Bk G ZZILE 52’1008 |(00'000'9L) [ 000 | ovor INA/0ES00/3L uoaunr yimBue ‘py uogels|
¥Z501z |(B5LeI08) | 000 00 :: 08 0017108 BEOV | 1NO/LES00FL UOLELLION [NoS Wiz 4 3Bpo7 poomasoy
_Woawoyeeakg ped iz p2ei'02 ((00°850°L9) 000 DUGFEEL) 00 BFEEE 90 | 1NOZ8L00/EL JIBYSa) L PECY PBISUE|
pawnsse jdizosl way sieak o | zZ'90'10 [(D0ZELOE 000 EEOF 1N0/S3000/FL (z asaud) Aeps vojeBinul | &
) jdizoa) woly siesh § jebpng  STR0L0 Aww £91'0E) ((89°EIV'0E) 00'0 000 000 €P0F | OLLBSLLP| 922D | INABIEOOGL | |[AMSRIT) JRAING JAUUYS |8 pUET] 9220 | €6 |
Tiwade j0u 4 paBUBIEYD 89 IS PINGT ING - YOEGMER [EE] ON) SJE0 | [61L285Z1 L [00'e8szE THO¥ | O0LL6Bhib| 0220 | PYNLNOVLSO000/%E | SUMOID 'Wie] 4sy 4B 9229 | 26
02/30/9Z e¥epdn ||2W2 S - | 00’0 00"000 655, 00°000°695 920F | QLLG 8Hip| 9200 LNOIPasourl | }004q34145 YINag - 3[eAy00.g| O | 9220 | 65
106081 WoJj SIEGA G| | 000 000 looo 0LL6BLLP| 922D | INAILES00/FL © UOJUBWLON YINOg IS8 BUET JBHED| & | 522D | 2L
(og'go'st) oo 00°18E'8 s__ ISET'ESL)  00°ZESIEE 9ZID s[eje] (jewiojul) eseds usdg 971D
{ads jou y 29 IS pIN03 ing - yPequer [e6e on) sieak s ZZNE | |00 ' | 9219 | MvINLNO/LS000i7L| s219 | b
- Jdeoal oy sieak s Lzi0E 9219 | INJDESDOMAL 9219
EA NA/G0Z00/LE ETCRE
- ] AN LEODILL 9zLD |
az1 9z
9z1 INASEFO0/5L 92
9z1 LOO/S9000FE | oz [
9z} NALEE00KL | ez 29
_— L 9z} INAGZZ00FL | 9219 | €9
e EHY: SELO0/S0 ga30g " 9yl O] 9z19 | G¥
equepoul wew || (e2+9v'7) i B 2200000 NS ‘uawdoraneq py poomauer o | azLo |z
[ . e [ i [N 90000/+0 liamsauD (IS Jauue) wied aiawiRzey 0| 9719 | ef
HOEQME Ou| | [Tzegpaor) | i 9z10 | BZI0MPOSEIOE | (saluo 19) sumol] ‘amuq ebesHd| 8Z19 | §
(oe'Loe'vey)  00'0 (o0'6aL'zz) 00°¥98'FLE 0L $[Bj0L (jeunod) pods Jooping  0LLD
OZ/ZWVE PIEd £Aq a5 691" (00681 'ZE) 00'691'2Z FbOF | 0ZLE DB0F| 041D | INJMLEE00MAL ANED 184313 HeoIqaRS | L S6
Al 4 SE'E0 i 000 \¥OF | 0ZL6 DBOP| 0L1D | LNOML00OSEL | o Janos|og "aue __E L 68
i e 00'iPE'BZL | ®EOF | 0246 0BOY| 041D | LNO/ES00FL uojeuloN Wnos ‘uiey sfipo] B L 58
Iusuwiked [¥UD 5U1jo 19/509) J0 316D 91 Woy) SIE9k G wed 221z 2L DO'¥GELE 950% | 02L0000F| 0410 | LNO/ZELONEL JIPYIALL PEOH FIRUSUEI] ¢ | 0L €8
1daaai oy sieal [z 00'LVS'bE GEOY | 0ZL6 0BOP| OLLD | INJAWLEOOMLL | J3AOS(08 '5010 019 | 28
_ . _ oS Jad YIRGMEND ol I 10 TYIIN/S5L00/E0 43USaIL 'SUSpies) JuaLliolly 38uiiod 1S UolBUaded & | 040D | 4L
- 103q3p Aspuns o yusuded woy sieal 5| ) | IN/L55007| UDIUELLIION MO 1580/ 8UET J8UED | ¢ | 0.19 | 9
- 2j3/dwog)| INABZZ00/FL UNDI P WRRUIOY SRS S_SSBT 019 | 29
unowe SELO0/SD 837200 ‘sAQuEg LD 0LD | 62
SIEIOL BV o) Wadldd  STHD
yhianal woy sieak NG 900 L ‘encsjog eys efipo poomeys seuwioy
yiE0a] ol Sieak NA/GOZ00ILE 119usa1| "9UeT i 900 'WeIDBAS| | GZLD | 8
..... 108081 Woy Sieak IN/S5F00/5L FUMDIZ) “WIES B5TI0H 5219 | 6L
101qap Apuns jo uawied woly sieal | IN4rLSs00eL WINoS Jsann SUET JBpeD | L GZLD | 88
EEEITR] i INHGZZ00/FL SUMOID P WRLISYIOY 'S2|0elS ApISPOOM D | GZLD | 19
520 BUIEME - BPEW REIUOD - O 1di90a) woyj sieal g j 19t | sz u 1 seLooisn Ba7900 SaqUEIgayL|d | GZiD | ¥
000 Z1'564'8L (88'0) 0095181 () S[EjoL UoEINPI LD
(uads jou y paBuayeya &q s pnod ing - yoegume) (eBa) o) siead G| | |2hsBL'eL |(2g'0) |00°961'81 | 2v0r |  £ZL8E60F| LLLD | MVINLNO/LS000/FE| sumo|s) ‘uued usy uBIH| | 121D | 08
(oo'9LL's) (00'8LL"1) 000 2o siejo) Buisnoy slaepiopy  Z.19
_ - | ek uioeq pdn | seekjuauna |epon|  epon | enuegy soquny aquey
sjuawway w papesoyy | A8 EEN up iy 3 » swody| | 350D uopeddy uondusag 500 B @
|emoy Juedsun aunypuadx3 |sfosd | puedxa | peweey Bujuueld paelay 3 5
[ EL0pISPORIBOED - -
1950/8L68 + £950/ZZ68 - SIUNo9e Buipioy 801§ Wwoij 16PN jo Bujpuny

40



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 20/00166/FUL - Primrose Residential Development: 16 units (Use Class C3) - Amberleigh Manor, Primrose Hill, Blackwell
	6 Update on Section 106 Agreement Monitoring

